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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Edelweiss Broking Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss Broking Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statementis give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive income its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financtal position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind1an
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
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accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abouf whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal confrol.

*  (Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our apinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may
be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstat/el_n in the
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We comumunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with refevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and lo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2018 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2017, included in these standalone Ind AS financial statements,
are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements’ prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, have been audited by us and have expressed an unmodified opinion

on those statements vide report dated April 27, 2018 and May 12, 2017 for the year ended March 31, 2018
and March 31, 2017 respectively, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the
Company on transition to the Ind AS.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as
amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

{g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the_best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us: -
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i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;
ii. the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative

contracts; and
1ii.there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

3. In our opinion, proper books of accounts and records as specified in Rule 15 of the Securities Contract
(Regulation)} Rules, 1957 have been kept by the Company in so far as it appears from examination of
such books,

4. The Company has complied with the requirements of BSE Limited (‘BESL’), the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (‘NSEIL’) and MCX Stock Exchange (‘MCX SX’) in so far as they relate to
maintenance of accounts and to the best of our knowledge and belief, was regular in submitting the
required accounting information to the respective stock exchanges.

5. The Company has complied with the requirements of the derivatives segment of the BSE and NSEIL in
so far as they relates to maintenance of accounts and to the best of our knowledge and belief, was regular
in submitting the required accounting information to the derivatives segment of the exchange.

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 119850W

R. P. Soni
Partner
Membership No.:104796

Place: Mumbai
Date: May §, 2019
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred fo in our Independent Audifors’ Report to the members of Edelweiss Broking
Limited (‘the Company’} on the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

@) (a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all the fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our
opinion this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deed of immovable property is held in the name of the Company.

(ii) The Company has conducted physical verification of inventory on the basis of statement received from
depository participants -in respect of securities held as inventory, at reascnable intervals during the year.
No material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iii)(a), (b) and {c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

@iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans to
directors including entities in which they are interested in respect of which the provisions of section 185
of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investments made.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for any activities conducted and services rendered by the Company.

(vii)  (2) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, mmcome-tax, service tax, sales
tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues, applicable fo it,
have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As
explained to us, Company did not have any dues on account of duty of excise and duty of custom.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, income-~tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and service tax and cess were in
arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, value added

tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute. The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax and service tax on account
of dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute | Nature of | Amount Period to which the Forum where dispute is
dues {Rs.) amount relates pending

Income Tax Income 643,824 | AY.2011-12 CIT (A)

Act, 1961 Tax

Finance Act, 1994 Service 212,489* | April 2004 to March CESTAT -~ Ahmedabad
Tax 2006

Finance Act, 1994 Service 33,009 | October 2007 to March | CESTAT - Ahmedabad
Tax 2008

Finance Act, 1994 Service 8,454,342* | April 2004 to March CESTAT - Ahmedabad
Tax 2008

Finance Act, 1994 Service 446,805 | April 2008 up to 15th | CESTAT - Ahmedabad
Tax May 2008

Finance Act, 1994 Service 1,097,750 | April 2008 to March CESTAT - Ahmedabad
Tax 2009

Finance Act, 1994 Service 2,973,783 | 2011-12 to 2013-14 Assist. Commissioner
Tax

Finance Act, 1994 Service 591,125 | F.Y. 2010-1¢ CESTAT - Ahmedabad
Tax

Finance Act, 1994 Service 65,407 | Y. 2011-12 CESTAT - Ahmedabad
Tax

* net of amounts paid under protest.

(vili) In our opinion, and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to its bank. Further, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any
financial institution, government and debenture holders.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit,

(x1) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiif)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied
with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment shares
during the year. According to the information and explanations given by the management, wereport that
the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.




CHARTERED
— ACCOUNTANTS

CO. LLP

MUMBAI * INDORE * CHITTORGARH

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash fransactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 119850W

R. P. Soni
Partner
Membership No.:104796

Place: Mumbai
Date: May §, 2019
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Annexure B to the Auditors’ Report

Annexure B the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of Edelweiss
Broking Limited (“the Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Broking Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safegnarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Anditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting incluoded obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intermal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Infernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 119850W

R. P. Soni
Partner
Membership No.: 104796

Place: Mumbai
Date; May 8, 2019




Edelweiss Broking Limited
Balance Sheet

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at Asat As at
Note March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
_ ASSETS
Financial assets
[a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 229,67 684,31 54595
{b} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9 4,211,656 1,261.15 888.69
{c) Stock in trade 10 0.00 B -
(d) Trade receivables 11 3,596.47 4,613.08 3,201.09
{e) Loans 12 1111 12.00 8.44
{f} Investments 13 0.05 21.18 201.99
{g) Other financial assets 14 5,644.78 7,993.32 6,543.09
13,693.74 14,585.04 11,389.25
Non-financial assets .
{a) Current tax assets {nat) 15 171.45 116,80 99.84
{b) Deferred tax assets (net) 16 627.66 213.51 307.58
(c) Property, plant and equipment 17 22113 299.78 293.45
(d) Capital wark in progress 0.43 6.08 37.39
{e) Intangible assets under davelopment 95.67 278.52 152.74
{f} Other Intangible assets 18 112.18 153.87 21.61
(g} Other non-financial assets 19 45,37 72.03 46.84
1,274.89 1,141.19 985,45
TOTAL ASSETS 14,968.63 15,726.23 12,388.70
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
{2) Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 56 - - -
total outstanding dues of eraditors other thaa micro enterprises and 20 10,223.62 7,406.37 5,986.28
small enterprises .
{b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 21 2,264.51 6,366.26 4,424.33
{c) Subordinated liabilities 22 - - 345,15
{d) Other financial liabilities 23 279.94 336.09 319,56
12,768.07 14,108.72 11,075.32
Non-financial liahilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net} 24 - 1.82 2.07
{b) Provisions 25 17.52 86.84 66.96
{c} Other non-financial liabilities 26 192.04 66.44 39.38
209.56 155.10 108.41
EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 27 1,771.80 1,133.00 48.81
{b} Qther equity 28 219,10 329.41 1,156.16
1,931.00 1,462.41 1,204.57
TOTAL LIABIUTYES AND EQUITY 14,968.63 15,726.23 12,388.70
Significant accounting policies and notes ta the financial statements. 1-58
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
for NGS & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 213850W

C&Z&—P\’ B?}-Wg o $d
R. P. Sant . Biren Shah Prashant Mody
Partner Executive Director Director
Membership No.: 104796 DIN : 01258542 DIN : 03102048
A7
Mumbai _ o
May 8, 2019 i ' /
Vira| Thapawala Mahadev Gole
Chief Finoncia! Officer Muonager

Brijmohan Bohra
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 8, 2019




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

{Currency : Indian rupges in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended

Note Iarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from operations
Fee and commission income 29 2,525.66 2,403.59
Interest income 30 689.54 32105
Rental income 27,52 34,23
Net gain on fair value changes 31 61.58 31.35
Other operating revenue 32 319.92 564.90
Total revenue from operations 3,624.22 3,355.12
Other income 33 246.76 12.39
Total income 3,870.98 3,367.51
Expenses
Finance costs 34 428,77 391.13
tmpairment on financial instruments 35 60.21 12.61
Employee benefits expense 36 2,523.17 1,584.63
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 17,18 217.52 B2.06
Other expenses 37 1,573.14 1,198.27
Total expenses : 4,802.81 3,268.70
{Loss)/ Profit before tax {931.83) 98.81
Tax expenses:

Current tax : {4.43) 32.75
Deferred tax (413.74) 93,65
Loss for the year {513.66) (27.60)

Items that will not be recfassified to profit or ioss
Rermeasurement loss on defined benefit plans {8.75} [1.93}
Other Comprehensive Income (B.75} (1.93}
Total Comprehensive Income (522.41) {29.53}
Earnings per equity share (Face vatue of T 10 each): 39
Basic (in Rs.) ) {3.76} {4.55)
Diluted {in Rs.} {3.786} (4.55)
Significant accounting policies and note forming part of the financial statements  1-58
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
for NGS & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 119850W

R. F: Sani Biren Shah Prashant Mody
Partner ) Executive Director Director
Membership No.: 204796 DIN : 01258542 DIN : 03101048
Mumbai ‘ c.\ty
May 8, 2019 /
Viral Thanawala Mahadev Gole
Chief Financial Officer Manager

Brijmohan Bohra

Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 8, 2019




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Statement of changes in Equity

{Currency : Indian rupees in millicns)

- Asat As at

March 31, 2019 March 32, 2018
a) Equity share capital
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,133.00 48.81
Change in equity share capital during the year {refer note 27} 638.90 1,084.19
Balance as at the end of the year 1,771.80 1,133.00
b} Other equity

Capital Reserve Securities Premium Deemed capital Retazined earnings Total
{refer note o below] | frefer note b below) contribution - ESOP
{refer note ¢ below)

Balance at April 1, 2017 (as per IGAAP} - 1,193.03 - 288.12 1,481.15
Ind AS adjustmants (1,872.09} - 24.93 1,522.17 {324.99)
Loss for the year - - - {27.60) |27.60)
Otiwer comprehensive income . - - {1.93} {1.93)
Issue of equity instruments - 699,30 - - £85.30
ESGP charge - - 14.49 - 14.49
Redemption of Preference shares 1,872.09 [1,872.09) - - -
Transaction with shareholder - - - {1,511.04) {1,511.01}
Balance at March 31, 2018 - 20.24 39.42 268.75 329.41
Loss for the year - - - {513.66} {513.66})
Other comprehensive income - - - {8.75} {8.75)
[ssue of equity instruments - 412.10 - - 412,10
Balance at March 31, 2019 - 432.34 39.42 [252.66) 218.10

Note:
a) Capital reserve

This reserve represents the excess of premium payable on redemption of financial liability towards preference shares issued by the Company over the
carrying amount of premium payable on redemption recogaized as liability under previous GAAP on the said preference shares.

b} Securities premium

Securities premiurm reserve is used to record the premiuvm on issue of shares. The resevve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of
bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

c) Deemed capital contribution - ESOP
Certain employees of the Company have been granted aptions to acquire equity shares of the Holding Company (Edelwelss Financial Services Limited).
This reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair value at the grant dates as recognised over the vesting period of such
options, to the extent that the Holding Company has not recovered such cost from the Company.

For NGS & Co. iLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 119850W

R. P. Sont

Partner
Membership No.: 104795

Mumbai
May 8, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Biren Skah
Executive Director
DIN : 01258542
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/

Viral Thanawala
Chief Financial Officer

o Ptrd AL

Brifmahan Bohra
Company secretory

Mumbai
May 8, 2019

Prashant Mody
Director
BIN - 03101048

Mahadev Gole
Manager




- £delweiss Broking Limited
Cash Flow Statement

{Currency : Indian rupees in millicns)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A Cash flow fram operating activities
(Lass)/Profit befare taxation {931.83) 98,81
Adjustments for: '
Depreciation, amortisation and impalrment 217,52 82,06
#rovision for expected credit losses - Trade Receivable and Receivable towards Margin trading 60.21 12.33
facility
{Profit}/Loss on sale/ write-off of Praperty, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) 1214.18) 0,56
Profit on sale of long term investment {63.41) ~ {22.39)
Rental income {27.52) {34.23)
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme [ESOP) - 14.50
Interest income eon subordinated liability {0.00) (4.55)
Finance costs, Incl bank guarantee commission 415,79 389,21
Operating eash flaw befare working capital changes (543.42) . 526,30
Add / {less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Decrease f{increase} In trade recefvables 958.32 (1,424.32)
increase in stock in trade {0.00} -
Increase in fixed deposits, loans and other financiai assets (603.00} (1,826.26)
Decsease flincrease) In other non financial assets 16.91 {25.19}
Increasa in trade payables and other financial liabilities 2,748.27 1,436.09
[ncrease In provisions and other non-financial fabllities 56.28 45,01
Cash flow fram operations 2,633.36 {1,258.37}
Income tax paid 51.24 50,65
Net cash generated from/f{used in) operating activities - A 2,581.42 (1,308.42)
8  Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, glant and equipment, and intangible assets {605.90) {279.20)
Sale of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 92432 3.54
Rental income 2752 -~ 34,23
Sale of investent 84.55 57.80
Redemption of Investments in subordinated liability - i50.00
Wet cash generated fromf{used in) investing activitles - B 430.45 {33.23)
€ Ccashflow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital including securities pramium . 1,051.00 - 1,783.48
Redemption of subordinated liabilities including premium - (1,891.00)
(Repayment of)f proceeds frem short term besrowings {net} {refer note below) {4,103.19) 1,935.38
Finance costs, incl. bank guarantes commission {414.36) (347.86}
Net cash (used in}/generated from financing activities - C {3,466.55) 1,480.01
Net {decrease} f increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {454.64) 138.26
Cash and cash eguivalents as at the beginning of the year 584.31 545,85
Cash and cash eguivalents as at the end of the year refer note 8) 229.67 684.31
Note: Net figures have beea reported on account of valume of transactions.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For NGS & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 119850W

e Ay =

Boow o ad’

R. P. Soni Biren Shah Prashant Mady
Partner - Executive Director Director
DIN ; 01258542 DIt : 03101048

Membership No.: 104796

et
Mumbai . y
May 8, 2019 ;; __DPE’P/

Viral Thanawala Mahadev Gole
Chief Financial Officer Manager

Brijmohan Bohra
Company Secretary

Mumbal
May 8, 2019




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. Background

Edelweiss Broking Limited {“the Company”) was incorporated on February 7, 2008. The Company is a
100% subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

The Company is registered as a trading member with National Exchange of India Limited {'NSEIL’), BSE
Limited (‘BSE’) and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI) and provides broking services to
the clients. The Company also registered as Depository Participant with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services {India) Limited {CDSL) and also registered as Repository
Participant with National E-Repository Limited (NERL). The Company is also a distributor for Mutual
Funds.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended
from time to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its Financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous
GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 are the first financial statements of
the Company prepared under Ind AS. Refer to note 57 for information on how the Company adopted Ind
AS.

These Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
instruments, derivative financial instruments, and other financial assets held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL). The financial statemenis are presented in Indian
Rupees {INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division lIl of the
Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date {current} and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non-current) is
presented in Note 42,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a
net basis in all of the following circurmnstances:

¢ The normal course of business
» The event of defauit
¢ The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the company and or its counterparties




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.1

4.2

4.3

Significant accounting policies

Recognition of interest

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt Instrument measured at FVOCL The EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial Instruments

a) Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

b} Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification of financial instruments

a) Financial assets:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

¢  Amortised cost
+  Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI)
»  Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




‘Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018

4.3 Classification of financial instruments {Continued)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are suhsequently measured at FVTPL.
i.  Amortized cost and Effective interest method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

ii. Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss. However,
for equity investments in subsidiaries and associates, these are measured at cost as permitted under Ind
AS 27.

b} Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees, and
derivative financial liabilities.




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.3

Classification of financial instruments {Continued)
Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other horrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

c) Financial assets and Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 108,

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recarded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recorded in profit and loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL
is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/
premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets
mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL s recorded using contractual interest rate.

d} Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the
proceeds received.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's
own equity instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

a) Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to
the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the difference recognised as a
derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not
result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.4

4.5

4,6

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities {Continued)

b) Derecognition of financial assets {other than due to substantial modification):

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial asset and
the consideration received would be recognised in profit or loss.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
¢« The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

e It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

¢} Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where an existing financial fiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, would
be recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
Financial liabilities are never reclassified,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and |ease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime (Expected
Credit Loss (ECLs) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables, However if
receivables contain a significant financing component, the Campany chooses as its accounting policy to
measure the loss allowance by applying general approach to measure expected credit [osses.

For financial assets, the expected credit [oss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an
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for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4,10

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, |etters of guarantees. Collateral, unless
repossessed, is not recorded on the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the
calculation of ECLs. it is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical
basis. However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is
valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.
Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

The Company's policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to
their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the
repossession date in, line with the Company’s policy.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a [iability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.10

4.11

Determination of fair value (Continued)

interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and beast use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
uncbservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

e level 1 financial instruments —Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date,

e level 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life.

s level 3 financial instruments ~Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization {based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The
Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and
model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the
expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect
the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting perEod on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue is measured at transaction price i.e. the amount of consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts
coltected on behalf of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contract and its customary
business practices to determine the transaction price. Where the consideration promised is variable, the
Company excludes the estimates of variable consideration that are constrained.
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4.11

4,12

4.13

4.14

4.15

Revenue from contract with customer (Continued)

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

a. Brokerage income on securities broking business is recognised as per centracted rates at the
execution of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is reflected net of related
_sub-brokerage expenses, goods and service tax (“GST”), transaction charges and stock exchange
expenses.

b. Fee income including advisory fees, referral fees, commission income, and transaction fees is
accounted at a point in time as the customer receives and consumes the benefits.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, in which case lease payments are recognized based on contractual terms.
Contingent rental payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which itis incurred.

Rental income are recognised on accrual basis by reference to the agreements entered.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares,

Foreign currency transactions

The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Parent.
Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees {i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetasy items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost In a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefit
Provident fund and national pension scheme
The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined

contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
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4.15

4.16

Retirement and other employee henefit (Continued)

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have

earned in return for their service In the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the
obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insurance company
approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA).

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OClin
the period in which they occur,

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods.
Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave
entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Share-based payment arrangements

Certain employees of the Company have been granted equity-settled ESOPs by the ultimate parent
company {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited). The Company recognizes a cost with respect to the
services received from the said employees measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted by the ultimate parent at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in deemed capital
contribution from the ultimate parent, to the extent it is not recovered by the ultimate parent company.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the deemed capital contribution to the extent it is not recovered by the ultimate parent
company. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the

Company treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each Instalment has a different vesting
period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.
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4,17

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodaology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In
respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule [l of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule | for
caleulating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated useiul lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful life

Building (other than Factory Building) 60 years
Furniture and fixtures . 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. Iyears

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any géin or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss. '

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate
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4.17

4.18

4,19

4.20

4,21

Property, plant and equipment {Continued)

For transition to ind A5, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP
notified by MCA rules 2006 and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible assets

The Company's intangible assets mainly inciude the value of computer software. An intangible asset Is
recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumnulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life.

Intangibles such as software is amertised over a peried of upto 5 years based on its estimated useful life.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no lo'nger exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. if the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reffects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
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4.21

4,22

Provisions and other contingent liabilities (Continued}

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company,
where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

income tax expenses

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

a) Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of incame or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax fosses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary difference, unused
tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences which
are expected to reverse in the peried of reversal of deductible temporary difference or in periods in which
a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this Is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the
extent it is probable that:

s the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible temporary
difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

e tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no Jonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

" Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in

which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Income tax expenses {Continued}

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

¢) Currentand deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the Company's accounting policies the management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
astimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or cireumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans
given/ taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle.

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.

b} Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the Company
believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the estimated future taxable
incame which in turn is based on approved business plans and budgets. The losses are allowed to be
carried forward to the years in which the Company expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to
offset these losses.

6 Standards issued but not yet effective

a} AS116 Leases:

Ind AS 116 lLeases replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is eifective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a

single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers)
and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of
a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments {i.e., the lease fiability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term {i.e., the right-of-use asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The application of this standard is not likely to have a
material impact on the Financial statements.

b} Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation {Amendments to Ind AS 103}

The amendments to Ind AS 108 dlarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature
meets the SPPI condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable compensation for
the prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with
negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPL. These amendments are to be applied for annual
pericds beginning on or after Aprif 1, 2019.

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the financial statements.

7 Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2018)
a) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement {Amendments to Ind AS 19)

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on seitlement) is calculated by
measuring the defined benefit liability (asset} using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered
and plan assets before and after the plan amendment {or curtailment or settlement} but ignoring the
effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position}. The
change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result from the plan amendment (or curtailment or
settlement} is determined in a second step and is recognised in the normal manner in other
comprehensive income.

An entity is also now required to use the updated assumptions from this remeasurement to determine
current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the
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7 Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2018} (Continued)

plan. In the case of the net interest, for the pericd post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated by
multiplying the net defined benefit liability {asset) as remeasured under Ind AS 19 with the discount rate
used in the remeasurement (alsa taking into account the effect of contributions and benefit payments on
the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

These amendments are to be applied to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements occurring on or
after April 1, 2019.

b) Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Appendix C of Ind AS 12)

This Appendix sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The Appendix requires an entity to:
= determine whether uncerfain tax positions are assessed separately or as a Company; and
e assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain fax treatment used, or
proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings:
o If yes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position consistently with the tax
treatment used or planned to be used in its income tax filings.
o If no, the entity should reflect the eifect of uncertainty in determining its accounting tax
position.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. Entities can apply the
Appendix with either full retrospective application or modified retrospective application without

restaterment of comparatives retrospectively or prospectively.

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the Financial statements.
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10

11

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits ({refer note 51)

Stock in trade
(ot fair value through profit and foss, within India}

Equity instruments *

* Indicates amount [ess than 0.00 million

Trade receivables

Receivables considered good - Secured
Receivables considered good - Unsecured
Receivables - credit impaired

Less : Allowance for expected credit [osses (ECL)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
0.03 0.01 0.10
229.64 684.30 545.85
229.67 584.31 545.95
4,211.66 1,261.15 888.69
4,211.66 1,261.15 388.69
0.00 - -
0.00 - R
3,423.80 4,167.81 3,176.11
172.67 445.27 24.98
291.58 247.14 234.81
3,888.05 4,860.22 3,435.80
251.58 247.14 234.81
3,596.47 4,613.08 3,201.09
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11 Trade receivables {Continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:

Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach Amount {3)
Impairment allowance as on April 1, 2017 234.81
Addy/ {less): asset ariginated or acquired (net} 1233
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2018 247.14
Add/ {less): asset originated or acquired (net} 44.44
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2015 291.58
Provision matrix for Trade receivables
Trade receivables days past due 1-90 days 91-180 days more than 181 Total

days
March 31, 2019
ECL rate 0.12% 15.71% 80.24%
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 3,511.41 22.53 353.71 3,888.05
ECL - Simplified approach (4.16) (3.60) (283.82) (291.38)
Net carrying amount 3,507.25 19.33 69.89 3,596.47
March 31, 2018
ECL rate 0.15% 12.26% 63.48%
Estimated total grass carrying amount at default 4,319.77 200.18 340.27 4,860.22
ECL - Simplified approach (6.59) {24.54) (216.01} (247.14)
Net carrying amount 4,313.18 175.64 124.26 4,613.08
April 1, 2017
ECL rate 0.74% 23.67% 71.81%
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 3,087.17 79.53 268.80 3,435.90
ECL - Simplified approach (22.85) {18.92) {153.04} {234.81)
Net carrying amount 3,064.32 61.01 75.76 3,201.09
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

12  Loans
(At omortised cost, unsecured, within India)

Employee Leans - gross carrying amount

As at As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 Aprii 1, 2017
11.11 12.00 8.44
11.11 12.00 8.44
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued )
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

13  Investments (Continued)

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars At Amortised cost | At cost (subsidiaries) Total
Preference shares 0.05 - 0.05
Total - Gross {A) - 0.05 - 0.05
(i} Investments outside India - - -
{ii) Investment within India 0.05 - 0.05
Total (B) 0.05 - 0.05
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - -
Total Net {A-C) 0.05 - 0.05
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars At Amortised cost | At cost (subsidiaries}) Total
(i} Subsidiaries - Equity Shares - 21.14 21.14
(i) Preference shares 0.04 - 0.04
| Total - Gross (A) 0.04 21.14 21.18
{i} Investments outside India - - -
{ii) Investment within India 0.04 21.14 21.18
Total (B) ‘ 0.04 21.14 21.18
Less: Allowance for impairment (C} - - -
Total Net (A-C}) 0.04 21.14 21.18
As at April 1, 2017
Particulars At Amortised cost | At cost (subsidiaries) Total
(i) Subsidiaries - Equity Shares - 56.55 56.55
(ii} Preference shares - subsidiary company 145.44 - 145.44
Total - Gross (A) 145.44 56.55 201.99
(i) Investments outside India - - -
(if) Investment within India 145.44 56.55 201.99
Total (B) 145.44 |- 56.55 201.99
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - -
Total Net {A-C) 145.44 56.55 201.99
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{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

14  Other financial assets

Security deposits - Rent

Deposits placed with exchange/ depositories

Other deposits

Receivable from exchange/ clearing house {net)

Margin with exchange/ clearing house

Receivable towards margin trading facility (net of provision for expected credit
loss ¥ 1,92 million (Previous Year T Nil})

Other assets

Asat Asat Asat

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprit 1, 2017

111.04 65.39 43.47

27.82 27.82 27.32

7.72 6.85 6.45

1,640.39 2,491,53 2,548.49

1,853.26 3,778.19 3,514.31
1,961.15 1,608.84 -

3.40 1471 3.05

5,644.78 7,993.32 6,543.09
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{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

15

16

Current tax assets [net}

Advance income taxes

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets
Trade receivables and Receivable towards Margin trading facility
Provision for expected credit losses

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference hetween book and tax depreciation

Employee benefit obligations
Provision for compensated zbsences
Provision for deferred bonus
Unused tax credit
MAT credit entitliement
Unused tax lasses
Accumulated losses
Others {Preliminary expenses)

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, pfant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation

Asat As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
171.45 116.90 59.84
171.45 116.90 99.84
91.57 77.11 77.63
31.98 - 1.62
5.47 3.44 197
- 2131 20.17
118.11 112.30 86.34
376.58 - 119.74
2.94 1.27 0.09
627.66 215.43 307.58

- 1.52 -

- 1.52 -
627.66 213.91 307.58
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlions)

19 Other non-financial assets

Input tax credit

Contribution to gratuity fund (net)

Prepaid expenses

Vendor advances

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Advances to employees

As at Ag at Asat

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
- 35.58 15.01

2.44 - 0.87

25,23 17.85 12.27

9.84 13.65 13.12

7.21 3.33 211

1.65 1.62 3.46

46.37 72.03 46.84
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20

21

22

Trade payables

Trade payable to related party
Trade payable to others

Borrowings {other than debt securities}
{At amortised cost, within India}

Secured

Bank overdraft

{Secured by way of pledge of hypothecation of immovable property and
repayable on demand}

Unsecured

Loan from related parties

(repayable on demand at interest rate ranging from 9.00% p.a. to 12.50% p.a.
(Previous Year: 10.00% p.a.))

Subordinated Liabilities
(At amortised cost, within India)

Preference shares

As at As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
217.08 142.37 88.09
10,006.54 7,264.00 5,898.19
10,223.62 7,406.37 5,986.28

- - 229.91

2,264.51 6,366.26 4,194.42
2,264.51 6,366.26 4,424.33

- - 345.15

345.15
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23

Other financial liabilities

Other payables

Book overdraft *

Accrued salariesand benefits
Depaosits from sub-brokers
Retention money payable

* Indicates amount less than 0.00 mitlion

As at As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
46.11 2.07 3.34

15.44 0.00 32.54

115.99 248.26 222,61

893.72 84.66 60.82

8.68 1.10 0.25

279.94 336.09 319.56
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24

25

26

Current tax liahilities {net)

Provision for taxation (net}

Provisions

Gratuity
Deferred bonus
Compensated absences

Other non-financial liabilities

Income received in advance

Withholding taxes, goods and service tax and other taxes payable
Advances from customers

Others

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
- 1.82 2.07

- 1.82 2.07

- 7.50 -

- 68.32 61.02
17.52 11.02 5.94
17.52 36.84 66.56

- - 0.23

190.72 62.51 35.17
0.59 0.54 0.36
0.73 3.39 3.62

192.04 66.44 39.38
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27

28

As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprit 1, 2017
Equity share capital
Authorised :
213,300,000 (Previous year: 113,300,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each) 2,133,00 1,133.00 397.50
10,000,000 {Previous year: 10,000,000) Preferance Shares of ¥ 10 2ach} 106.00 100.00 100.00
2,233.00 1,233.00 497.50
Issued, subscribed and paid up:
177,180,000 (Previous year: 113,300,000) Equity shares of T 10 each, fully paid-up 1,771.90 1,133.00 48.81
1,771.80 1,133.00 48.81
Movement in shore capital
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,133.00 48.81 48.81
Shares issued during the year 638.90 1,084.19 -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1,771.50 1,133.00 48.81

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares :

The Campany has anly one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/~ Each holder of equity shares is entitled ta one vote per share held. In the event of liguidation
of the Company, the bolders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by the holding company

% % %
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited with its nominee 100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 160%
Other Equity
Capital reserye - Opening balance - (£,872.09) -
less ¢ IND AS adjustment as on Aprit 1, 2017 - - (1,872.09)
Add : Additions during the year - 1,872.09 -
- - (1,872.09}
Securities premium - Opening balance . 20,24 1,193.03 1,193.03
Add : Additions during on issue of equity shares 412.10 69930 -
Less : Utilized towards redemption of preference shares - {1,872.09) -
432.34 20.24 1,183.03
Deemed capital contribution - ESQP 39.42 24.93 -
Add : IND AS adjustment as on April 1, 2017 - - 24.93
Add : Addisions during the year - 14.49 -
39.42 39,42 24.93
Opening balance - Retzined earnings 269.75 $,810.29 288.12
Add ; IND AS adjustment as on April 1, 2017 - - 1,522.17
Less: Loss for the year {513.66) (27.60) -
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year {8.75) (1.93) -
Less: Transaction with shareholder - {1,511.01) -
Amount available for appropriation [252.66) 269.75 1,810.25

219.10 329.41 1,156.16
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29

30

for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Fee income
Income from securities broking 1,716.84 1,888.19
Advisory and other fees 808.82 515.40
2,525.66 2,403.59
Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers:
Service transferred at a point in time 2,495.05 2,387.29
Service transferred over time 30.61 16.30
Total revenue from contract with customers 2,525.66 2,403.59
Interest income
(On financial assets measured at amortised cost)
Interest on deposits with banks 84.04 72.24
On margin with brokers 229.55 242.78
On margin trading facility 375.94 -
Other interest income 0.01 6.03
689.54 321.05
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{Currency : Indian rupees in millicns)

for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
31 Netgain on fair value changes
Net gain/ (loss) an financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Profit on trading of securities (net} 0.85 5.84
Loss on equity derivative instruments (net} (2.68} (0.88)
Profit on sale of long term investment 63.41 2238
Total Net gain on fair value changes 61.58 31.35
Fair value changes:
Realised gain 61.58 31.35
Unrealised gain 0.00 -
Total Net gain on fair value changes 61.58 31.35
32 Other operating revenue
Delayed payment charges 319.92 564.80
319.92 564.590
33 Otherincome
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (net} 214,18 -
Miscelfaneous income . 32.58 12.39
246.76 12.39
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35

36

Finance costs
(On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

Interest on borrowings
Interest on subordinated liabilities
Other interest expense

Impairment on financial instruments
{On financial instruments measured ot amortised cost)

Bad-debts written off )
Provision for expected credit losses - Trade Receivable and Receivable
towards Margin trading facility

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)*
Staff welfare expenses (refer note 53}

for the year ended

for the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
404.77 350.41

- 34.80
24.00 5.92
428,77 391.13
13.85 0.28
46.36 12.33
60.21 12.61
2,295.63 1,440.36
104.53 67.15
36.70 14.50
86.31 62.62
2,523.17 1,584.63

* The Holding Company {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL"}) has Employee Stock Option Plans in force. Based on such
ESOP schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options, Company has

accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.
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Note
37a

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 37a below)
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Birectors' sitting fees

Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Rent {refer note 53)

Repairs and maintenance

Electricity charges {refer note 53)
Foreign exchange loss {net)

Computer expenses

Computer software

Corporate social responsihilify - Donation (refer note 37b)
Donation

Dematerialisation charges

Loss on sale of of properrty, plant and equipment
Membership and subscription

Office expenses

Postage and courier

ROC expenses

Seminar and conference

Goods and Service tax expenses

Site related expenses

Stamp duty

Stock exchange expenses

Travelling and conveyance
Housekeeping and security charges
Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors’ remuneration:

As Auditors

For other services

Towards reimbursement of expenses

for the year ended

for the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
290.37 236.48
1.28 1.21
0.56 0.40
83.67 83.85
- 0.17
0.95 1.42
85.60 69.79
14.33 17.10
0.46 0.11
247.99 164.75
0.31 17.96
36.40 31.47
0.01 0.01
18.26 15.03
130.64 40.18
2.50 0.58
1.21 0.20
17.66 14.55
. 0.56
3.42 0.87
3584.25 270.68
7.28 7.55
8.11 4.91
2.24 12.17
10.31 {9.91)
43.40 98.23
7.78 6.01
7.23 3.38
120.64 88.71
18.55 13.42
7.73 6.42
1,573.14 1,198.27
1.20 0.98
0.08 0.18

- 0.05
1.28 1.21
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37 Other expenses (Continued)

37b Details of Corporate sacial responsibility (CSR) activities

a)

b}

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

Amount spent during the year

i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset

ii} On purposes other than (i) above

for the year ended
March 31, 2019

for the year ended
March 31, 2018

2.50 2.38
2.50 0.59
2.50 0.59

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Lirmnited. Edelweiss group is conscious of its
Corporate Social Responsihility and, had accordingly established a CSR arm, "EdelGive Foundation” in the year 2008.
As an amount of Rs. 225.19 miilion (Previous year: Rs. 177.84 million} (representing more than 2% of the
consolidated profit of the group) was spent towards CSR activities during the year ended March 31, 2019, the
Company has incurred the prescribed CSR expenditure on a standalone basis during the year ended March 31, 2019.
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a)

b)

Income Tax disclosures

The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current tax - 32.86
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years (4.43) (0.11)
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences {37.16} 93.66
Deferred tax asset recognised on unused tax credit or unused tax losses {376.58) -
Total tax charge {418.17) 126.52
Current tax {4.43) 32,75
Deferred tax {413.74) 93.66
Reconciliatien of total tax charge
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements {931.83) 58.81
Tax rate {in percentage} 31.20% 31.20%
Income tax expense calculated hased on this tax rate (290.73} 30.83
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years (4.43) (0.11)
Effect of income not subject to tax - {1.42)
Effect of non—deductible expenses 1.18 15.26
Effect of indexed cost being available as deduction 10.04
Effect of recognition of deferred tax asset on prior peried losses - earlier not recognised (94.93) -
Effect of uttlisation of tax losses on which deferred tax asset earlier not recognised or deferred tax assets on - 92.62
losses earlier recognised now censidered not recoverable
Minimum aiternate tax on book profits {incremental portion) - 32.86
Recognition of available tax credits (for example, Minimum Alternate Tax credit) (6.81) {25.96)
Impact of tax rate changes (between two accounting periods} - 5.87
Impact of certain items being taxed at different rates (for example, capital gains at different rates, etc.) {14.53) (0.43)
Depreciation on Goodwill as per [ncome 1ax {17.95) {23.10}
{418.17) 126.41

Tax charge for the year recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss’
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€]

d}

Income Tax disclosures (Continued}

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recordad in the Income tax expense:

hovement for the year ended March 31, 2019

Opening deferred tax
asset as per Ind AS

Recognised in
statement of profitand
loss

Total movement

Closing deferred tax
asset as per Ind AS

Deferred taxes in relation to:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles {1.52) 33.50 33.50 31,98
Trade receivables and Receivable towards Margin trading 77.11 14.46 14.46 91.57
facility :
Employee henefits obligations 24.75 (19,29} {19.29) 5.47
Unused tax losses {including but not limited to business [osses, - 376.58 376.58 376.58
unabsorbed depreciation)
Unused tax credits (including but not limited to Minimum 112.30 6.81 6.81 119,11
Alternate Tax credit)
Others {Preliminary expenses) 1.27 1.67 1.67 2.94
Total 213.91 413.74 413.74 627.66
Movement for the year ended March 31, 2018
Opening deferred tax Recognised in Total movement Clasing deferred tax
asset as per Ind AS | statement of profitand asset as per Ind AS
loss
Deferred toxes in relgtion to:
Property, Plant and Equipmens and Intangibles 162 (3.15) (3.15) (1.52}
Trade receivables and Receivable towards Margin trading 77.63 {0.53} (0.53) 7711
facility
Employee benefits obligations 22,14 2,61 2.61 24.75
Unused tax losses (including but not limited to business losses, 119.74 {11%.74) (119.74) -
unabsorbed depreciation)
Unused tax cradits {(including but not limited to Minimum 86.34 25.86 25.96 112.30
Alternate Tax credit) :
Others [Preliminary expenses) 0.08 1.18 1.18 1.27
Total 307.58 {93.66) {93.66) 213.91
Break-up of recognition of current tax March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
In statement of profit and loss (4.43) 32.75
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38 Income Tax disclosures {Continued)

e) Details of temporary differences where deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the
balance sheet

~ |As at March 31, 2018 Unused tax losses
Financial Year to which the Unabsorbed Depreciation Total

loss relates to

Amount Expiry year - Amount
financial year

F.Y.2013-14 214.39 Unlimited 214.39
F.Y.2014-15 23.18 Unlimited 2318
F.¥. 2015-16 66.71 Unlimited 66.71
Total 304.28 304.28

Nil disclosure for March 31, 2019 and April 1, 2017
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39 Earnings per share

The computation of earning per share is set out below:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Shareholders earnings (as per statement of profit and loss) (513.66) (27.60)
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of T 10
- Number of shares at the beginning of the year 113,300,000 4,881,000
~- Number of shares issued during the year 63,890,000 108,419,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 177,190,000 113,300,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 136,607,808 6,069,153
{based on the date of issue of shares)
Basic and Diluted earnings per share {In Rs.} {3.76) {4.55}

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2019
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

40  Segment reporting

The primary business of the Company is to provide broking and advisory services to the clients in
India.

Accordingly, there is no separate reportable segment and hence, no disclosure is made under
indian Accounting Standard 108 — Operating Segment Reporting.
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Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits

A} Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

Amount of T 83.49 million (Previous year: T 48.28 million) is recognized as expense and included
in “Employee benefit expenses” — note 36 to the statement of profit and loss.

B) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity):

The following tables summarize the components of the net benefit expenses recognized in the
statement profit and loss, the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for

the gratuity benefit plan.

Statement of Profit and Loss

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Service cost
a.Current service cost 17.37 11.50
b.Past service cost - 3.20
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 0.52 0.94
Employer expenses * 17.89 15.64
Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
) March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Present value of DBO at start of the year 73.92 42.57
Service cost
a. Current service cost 17.37 11.50
b.Past service cost - 3.20
Interest cost 5.06 372
Benefits paid {3.55) (3.21)
Re-measurements
a.Actuarial loss/{gain) from changed in financials 0.89 (1.27)
assumptions
b.Actuarial loss from experience over last past year 8.18 361
Transfer (out)/ in {1.57) 13.80
100.30 73.92

Present value of DBO at end of the year
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Diéc!osure pursuant to ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Fair value of plan assets at start of the year .66.42 43.44
Contributions by employer 35.01 23.00
Benefits paid (3.55} (3.21)
Interest income plan assets 4,55 2.78
Re-measurements
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net 031 0.41
interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 102.74 66.42
Actual return on plan assets 4.86 3.19
Expected employer contributions for the coming year - 7.50

Net (asset)/ liability recognised in the Balance sheet

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Present value of DOB 100.30 73.92
Fair value of plan assets 102.73 66.42
(Asset)/ liability recognised in the Balance Sheet {2.44) 7.49
Funded status [surplus/ (deficit}] 2.44 (7.50)
Of which, short term liability - -
Experience adjustment on plan liabitities:{gain)/loss 8.18 3.61

Actuarial assumptions:

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Salary growth rate (% p.a.) 7% p.a 7% p.a
Discount rate (% p.a.) 6.7% p.a 7% p.a
Withdrawal rate (% p.a.}
Senior 13% p.a 13% p.a
Middfe 30% p.a 30% p.a
Junior 60% p.a 60% p.a
Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2006-08

{Uitimate) {Ultimate)

Interest rate on net DBO/ (asset) (% p.a.) 7% p.a 6.6% p.a
Expected weighted average remaining working life 3 Years 3 Years

{years)

, MU&AE
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Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits (Continued)

"Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Balance at start of year {loss)/ gain NIL* NIL*
Re-measurements on DBO

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss from changed in financials (0.89) 1.27
assumptions

b. Actuarial (gain) from experience over last past year (8.17) (3.61})
Re-measurements on plan assets '

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in - 0.31 0.41
net interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset)

Re-measurements on Asset Ceiling

Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit - -
asset to the asset ceiling excluding amount included in

net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Balance at end of year (loss)/ gain (8.75) (1.93)

* Ind AS 19 is being adopted from F.Y. 2018-19 and date of transition being April 1, 2017 hence

disclosures are for comparative purposes only.

Sensitivity Analysis

DOB increases / {decreases ) by March 31,2015 March 31, 2018
1 % Increase in salary growth rate 4.90 3.30
1 % Decrease in salary growth rate {4.59) (3.07)
1 % Increase in discount rate (4.56) (3.05)
1 % Decrease in discount rate 4.96 3.34
1 % increase in withdrawal rate (0.58) {0.31)
1 % Decrease in withdrawal rate . 0.59 0.32
Mortality {Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year} 1§ Negligible change

Mortality {Increase in expected lifetime by 3 year)

w

Negligible change
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Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits (Continued)

Mavement in surplus/ (deficit)

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Net [liability)/ asset at start of year {7.50) 0.87
Net transfer (in)/ out 1.57 {13.80)
Movement during the year

Current service cost (17.37) {11.50)
Past service cost - {3.20)
Net interest on net DBO (0.52) {0.94)
Re-measurements (8.75) {1.93)
Contributions / benefits 35.01 23.00
Surplus / {deficit) at end of year 2.44 (7.50)

=

HARAYE
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43 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars Aprit 1, 2018| Cash flows during the| Others during the March 31, 2019
year year*
Borrowings other than debt securities 6,359.72 (4,103.19) 1.43 2,257.96
Totai liabilities from financing activities 6,359.72 (4,103.19) 1.43 2,257.96
* Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing
Particulars April 1, 2017| Cash flows during the | Others during the March 31, 2018
year year* ’
Borrowings other than debt securities 4,424.33 1,935.39 - 6,359.72
Subordinated liabilities* 345.15 {1,291.00) 1,545.85 -
Total liabilities from financing activities. 4,769.48 44.39 1,545.85 6,359.72

* Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing and adjustment of retained earnings on account of redemption of

preference shares.
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The Company operates in a regulatory and fegal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent in
its operations. As a result, the Company is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory proceedings in the ordinary
course of its business. The Company has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Based on professional legal advice,
the Company provides and/or discloses amounts in accordance with its accounting policies. At year end, the Company had several
unresolved legal claims however individually any of the claim is not material. The aggregate value of ¢laim against the Company is

44 Contingent liabilities, commitments and lease arrangements
a Legal claims

54,75 million.
b Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt 54.75 60.16
{b) Taxation matters 40.52 32.58

The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt
income under Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The company has filed appeal/s
and is defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax
advisors, company is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits on this ground is remote.

¢ Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into commercial leases for premises and equipment.

Future minimum lease payments under non~canceltable operating leases for the year ended March 31 are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Within one year 108.07 31.50
After one year but not more than five years 278.66 33.78
Mare than five years - -

Total 386.74 65.28

d Capital and other commitments

i} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets amounts to ¥
56.39 million {net of advances) (Previous year: ¥ 112.07 million).

it} The Company have provided bank guarantees aggregating to ¥ 80.00 million {Previous year ¥ 80.00 million) as on March 31, 2012 to
The Bombay 5tock Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirement.

iii} The Company have pledged fixed deposits with bank aggregating to ¥ 40.00 million (Previous year ¥ 40,00 million) for obtaining the
above bank guarantees.

iv} The Company have provided bank guarantees aggregating to ¥ 420.00 million {Previous year T 420.00 million} as on March 31, 2019
to The National Stock Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirement.

v} The Company have pledged fixed deposits with hank aggregating to ¥ 210.00 million (Previous year ¥ 210.08 miflion) for obtaining
the above bank guarantees.

45  With respect to financial instruments not measured at fair value, their carrying amounts approximates fair value.
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46 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”:

a.

b.

C.

Name of related party by whom control is exercised:
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Holding company
Subsidiaries/ entities, which are controlled by the Company:
Edel Finance Company LiAmited {up to March 28, 2018}

Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Edelweiss Securities Limited

EC Commodity Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Finance and investments Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

ECap Equities Limited *

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited **

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Commodities
Services Limited) *¥#*

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited
Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Multi St"rategy Fund Advisors LLP
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46 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 — “Related Party Disclosure” (Continued):
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edel Land Limited
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited
Edelweiss Securities Trading and Management Private Limited (Formerly known as
Dahlia Commaodities Services Private Limited)

EdeiGive Foundation
Edel Investments Limited

Alternative Investment Market Advisors Private Limited

*Dlive Business Centre Limited, Burlington Business Solutions Limited, Auris Corporate Centre
Limited, Serenity Business Park Limited and Eternity Business Centre Limited have been merged
into ECap Equities Limited w.e.f. April 21, 2018

**Edelweiss Multi Strategy Private Limited have been merged into Edelweiss Asset Management
Limited w.e.f, February 1, 2019

***Fdel Commodities Limited and EFSL Trading Limited was merged into EFSL Comtrade Limited
vide Order of National Company Law Tribunal at Hyderabad w.e.f. May 4, 2018.

Further, EFSL Comtrade Limited, Edelweiss Business Services Limited, Edelweiss Agri Value Chain
Limited, Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited and Edelweiss Fund Advisors Limited have been
merged into Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Commodities
Services Limited) w.e.f. February 18, 2019.

Accordingly, all related party transactions entered during the year and the outstanding balances
thereof, as at the end of the year relating to the transferor companies are considered to be
entered with the transferee companies and accordingly included in the related party
transactions of the Company.

d. Key Management Personnel
Mr. Biren Shah — Executive Director

Mr. Mahadev Gole - Manager




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Centinued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2018
{Currency: Indian supees in millions)

46 Distlosure as reguired by Ind AS 24 — "Related Party Disclosure” [Continued);
e}  Transactions with related parties ;
5r. No. Nature of Transaction Related party name 2018-1% 2017-18
Capital account fransactions
1 Issue of equity shares to (including share premium) Edelweiss Flnanelal Services Limited 1,050.99 1,783.45
2 Redemption of preference shares invested by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited . 1,517.00
(including share premium}
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited - 374.00
3 Invastment in Equity shares sold to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 84,55 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limitad - 57.80
Curcent account transactions
4 loans taken from {refer note befow) Edelwelss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 5,617.4% 7,423.56
ECap Equities Limited 1,770.00 -
5 Loan rapaid to frefer note below) Edelweiss Financial Services Limied - 2,573.55
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services timited 11,498.68 2,684.72
5 Neminaticn deposit given to Edel Finance Company Limited - 0.40
7 Nomination deposit received from Edel Finance Company Limited - 0.4D
8 Wargin placed with Edelwelss Custodial Services Limited 3,495.62 337775
9 Margin withdrawn from Edelwelss Custodial Services Limited 5,253.45 3,104.85
Edelweiss Securities Limitad - 68.94
Other transactions
10  Breckerage incoma received from Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited .56 -
Edelwelss Securities Trading and Management Private Limited 0.63 -
11 Commission income received from Edalwelss Tokis Life Insurance Company Limited 3332 23.77
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 151.21 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 101,08 -
Edelweiss General Insurance Campany Limited .03 -
12 Fee income received from Edelweiss Securities Limited 268.35 125,20
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limitad 51.08 -
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited §.67 B.56
13 Rentalincome from Edelweiss Securities Limited 319 830
Edeleap Securities Limited 617 7.05
ECap Equities Limited 4.21 508
£delweiss Custodial Services Limited 3.82 291
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.90 2.04
Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited 0.87 1.18
EC Commodity Limited 1.21 114
ECL Finance Limited 2,03 2,53
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited .02 0.22
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.12 0.25
Edelweiss Giobai Wealth Management Limited - 0.05
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited 213 046
Edelweiss Assat Management Limited - 012
Edelweiss Insurance Srokers Limited - 0.53
Edehweiss Finvest Private Limited .02 0.098
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.0 146
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited - 0.04
Edelweiss Securities {iFSC) Limited - 0.03
Edel Investments Limited 0.63 -
Alternative [avestment Market Advisors Private Limited .15 -
14 Interest paid on loan fram Edelwelss Financial Services Limited - 23,62
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 392.36 321.23
Ecap Equities Limited 1.82 -
15 Interest received on margin Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 229.55 242,75
Edelwelss Securities Limited 0.00 0.03
16 Rentpaidte Ecap Equities Limited 41,04 56.34
Edelwelss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 33.66 11,88
ECL Finance Limited - 158
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.16 0.17
17  Business support service charges paid to Edelwedss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 243.76 163.54
18  Website related charges paid te Edehwelss Rural & Corporate $ervices Limited 43.13 97,85




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes ta the financial statements (Continued)
for the yeor ended 31 March 2018
{Currency: Indian rupees in millicns)

46 Distlosure as required by Ind AS 24— “Related Party Disclosure” {Continued):
{e) Transactions with related parties {Continved) :
Sr. Na. Nature of Transaction Related party name 2018-19 2017-2018

15 Purchase of securities from Edelweiss Rural & Corparate 3ervices Limited 10.98 1,727.78
ECL Finance Limited 400,54 -
Edelwiss Global Wealth Management Limited 5.33 -
Edalweiss Finance & lnvestments Limited - 112,67
ECap Equities Limitad - 26,81
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited . 17.94

20 Sale of securities to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Servicas Limited - 246.84
ECL Finance Limited 53.47 -
Edelwiss Global Wealth Managemant Limited 311.53 -

21  Donation paid te EdelGive Foundation 2.50 0,59

22 Costreimbursement recavered from ECap Equities Limited - 6.79
Edefweiss Asset Management dimited 26,58 B.17
Edelweiss Comtrade Uimited 4.66 6.70
ECL Finznce Limited 8.53 5.29
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 512 4.14
Edelveiss Financial Services Limited - 3.07
Edalwaiss Housing Fihance Limited 2.02 0.57
Edalweiss Finvast Private Limited 0.96 -
Edefweiss Custadlal Services Limited 0.25 -
Edelweiss General insurance Company Limited .21 -
Edel Land Limited 0.15 0.03
Edalwaiss Retall Finance timited - 1.52
Edelwaiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 6.12
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - G.07
Edelweiss Custodlaf Services Limited - 8.04

23 Costreimbursement paid to Edelweiss Securities Limited 2.47 15.93
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 50.24 6.24
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 3.58 4,31
Edelweiss Glohal Wealth Management Limited 7.56 -
ECap Equities Limited 3.45 -
Edefweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.23 B
Edelweiss Taklo Life nsurance Company Limited - 0.04
Edelweiss Securities (IFSC} Limited - 0.03

24  Reimbursements paid{o Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2.25 116.29
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited . B.59
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 4.05
EC Commodity Limited - C.06

35 Reimbursements recovered from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 53.89 88.01

26  Fixed assets purchased from ECL Finance Limited 0.80 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.81 B
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.60 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 1.86 -
Edalweiss Seeurities Umited 1.08 2.36
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Servicas Limited .04 1.18
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 001 0.66
Edelweiss Finance & Investment Limited - G.51
Edelwaeiss Financial Services Limited a9.10 -
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited a.03 -
ECap Equities Limited 9.01 "
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited .02 -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.15 -
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited * 0.00 -
Edelwaeiss Asset Management timited 9.04 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 006
ECL Finance Limited * - 0.00
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.02 -

27  Szleof fixed assets to Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 343,58 0.89
Edelweiss Global Weaith Management Limited 573.84 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.23 047
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 0.16
ECL Finance Limited 0.44 -
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited 0.18 -
Edelweiss General insurance Compnay Limited 015 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.12 -
Edelwelss Securities Limited 0.22 -
Edelwelss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.11 -
Edelweiss Custadial Services Limited 0.18 .
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 0.06 -
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.04 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 0.08 B
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited 0.04 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Ltimited 0.80 -
Edelwelss Asset Reconstruction Campany Limited 0.0z -
EdelGive Foundation * 0,00 -
Edelcap Securitles Limited * 0.00 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited * 0.00 -




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Motes to the financial statements [Continued}
for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Currency: Indian rupees in milllons)

46  Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 — *Related Party Disclosure” {Continued):
{e)]  Transactions with related parties {Continued] =
5. No. Nature of Transaction fielated party name 2018-1% 2017-2018
28 Short term employee benefits paid ta frefer nate c) ¥ey Management Personnel 18.84 -
Balances with related parties

29 Equity shareholder capital held by £delweiss Financial Services Limited 1,771.99 1,133.00

30  Short term borrowings frem Tdelweiss Rural & Corporate Serviges Limited 465.28 6,338.47
ECap Equitias Limited 1,776.00 -

31  Trade payables to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 119.62 128.02
Edelweiss Securities Trading and Management Private Limited 69.65 -
ECap Equities Limited 13.15 13.08
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 4.01 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited 214 -
ECL Finance Limitad 0.01 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 8.05 -
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.28 -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisars Limited 0.01 B
Edelwelss Housing Finance Limited 0.06 -
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited * 0.00 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.07 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 0,50
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.76

32 Interest zccrued and due on loan taken Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 27,60 27.80
ECap Equities Limited 1.64 -

33 Other payables to Edehweiss Financial Services Limited 36.70 -
Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0,80
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 3.0% -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 0.85 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.8 002
Edelwaiss Assets R ruction Company Limited * 0.6o -
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP * - 0.00
Edelweiss Housing Flnance Limited - 0,08
Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited - 0.06

34 Investments in equity shares of Edelweiss Rura & Corporate Services Hmited - 2114

35 Trade receivables from Edelwaiss Securities Limitad 1.61 15.74
Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 2.57 0.42
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 6.53 1.36
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.03 15.53
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 9.10 2,79
ECL Finance Limited 173 4.32
Edelwaeiss Financiai Services Limitad 139 -
Edeiweiss Housing Finance Limited .46 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited .06 -
Edel Land Limited 0.11 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 0.36 -
Edelweiss Asset Recontructions Company Limited 0.01 -
Edzlweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.06 -
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 0.36 -
Edelweiss Financial Services timited - 1.94
EC Commodity Limited - D.32
Edeleap Seeurities Limited - 2.05
Edalweiss Comtrade Limited - 2.55
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited - 4.94
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited - 1.58
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited . 0,76
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - D.76
Edalweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.71
Edalweiss Finance and Investments Limited - 0.44
Edel Commodities Limited - D.13
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisars Limited - 0.07
Edel Land Limited - 0.04
Edelweiss Sesuritles {IFSC) Limited - D.04




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019
[Curreney: Indian rupees in milons)

a5 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 - “Refated Party Disclosure” (Continued):
{e] _ Transactions with related parties (Continued) :
5r. No. Nature of Transaction Related party name 2018-19 2017-2018
36  Other advances to be recovered from Edelwaiss Securities Limited 0.63 4.27
Edalwaiss Rural & Corporate Sarvices Limited 1.45 0.07
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.62 -
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 011 z2.34
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 6.88
Edelwelss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.04 -
ECL Finance Limited * 0.00 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 0.05 -
Edelcap Securitfes Limited 0.2z -
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.22 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.10 -
Edelweiss Financa & Investments Limited - 0.06
Edelcap Securities Limited - 016
Edelweiss investment Adviser Limited * - 0.00
EC Commadity Limited - 0.37
37  Accruad intarest on Margin placed with Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 9.50 -
38  Margln placad with Edelweiss Custodiat Services Limited 1,883.23 3,678.06
* Indicates amount less than 0.00 miliicn
Notes:
a, Loan given/ taken to/ from related parties and margin money placed / refund recefved with/ fram related parties are disclosed based on the maximum incremental
amount given/taken and placed / refund received during the reporting period.
b.  Disclosure under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 for loans and guarantes: Loans have been given for general business purpose.
c. Infermation relating to remuneration paid to key managerial persen mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and deferred bonus
which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis,
47  Capital management

The primary cbjectives of the Company's capital management policy are te ensure that the Company maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

to maximise shareholdey value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharehalders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital
securities, No changes have been made %o the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. Howevar, they are under constant review by the Board.

In addition te above, the Company i required to maintain minimum networth as prescribed by regulatory authorities. The management ensures that this is complied.




Edelweiss Broking Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

48

Risk Management

The Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is
managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is also subject to various operating and business risks.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk management strategies and principles. The Board has appointed the Risk
Committee, which is responsible for monitoring the overall risk process within the Company and
reports to the Audit Committee.

The Risk Cammittee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and
implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits.

. The Glohal Risk Group is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures

to ensure an independent control process is maintained. The risk team works closely with and
reports to the Risk Committee, to ensure that procedures are compliant with the overall
framework.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss the Company may face due to current/potential inability or
unwillingness of a customer or counterparty to meet financial /contractual obligations. Credit
risk also covers the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality of
receivables. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults. '

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk emanates from the possible mismatches due to differences in maturity and
repayment profile of assets and liabilities. To avoid such a scenario, the Company has
maintained cash reserves in the form of fixed deposits, cash and cash equivalents, etc. These
assets carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. These would
be to take care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour commitments as a going
concern.
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Edelweiss Broking Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
48 Risk Management {Continued)
Coliateral held and ather credit enhancements

The tables shows the maximum exposure to eredit risk by class of financial asset. They also shows the total fair value of collateral, any surplus collateral {the extent
to which the fair value of collateral held is greater than the exposure to which it relates), and the net expasure to credit risk;

Maximum exposure to
credit risk fcarrying

March 31, 2018 amount before ECL} Principal type of coll I

Financial assets

Loans 11,11 |Unsecured

Trade receivables (Gross) 3,888.05 |Cash, Securities, Fixed deposits, Bank

Guarantee etc

Cther financial assets

3,683.63

Unsecured

Other financial assets {Gross)

1,963.07

Cash, Securities, Fixed deposits, Bank
Guarantee etc

fnvestrnents in Preference shares at amortized cost

0.05

Unsecured

Total financial assets at amortised cost

5,545.91

Maxitnum expasure to
credit risk {carrying

March 31, 2018 amount before ECL) Principal type of collateral
Financial assets
Loans 12.00 |Unsecured

Trade receivables (Gross)

4,860.22

Cash, Securities, Fixed deposits, Bank
Guarantee etc

Other financial assets

5,384.48

Unsecured

Other financial assets (Gross)

1,508.84

Cosh, Securities, Fixed deposits, Bank
Guarantee etc

Investments in Preference shares at amortized cost

0.04

Unsecured

12,865.58

Total financial assets at amortised cost

April 1, 2017

Maximum exposure to
credit risk [carrying
amount before ECL)

Principal type of collateral

Financial assets

Loans

8.44

Unsecured

Trade receivables {Gross)

3,435.90

Cash, Securities, Fixed deposits, Bank
Guarantee etc

Other financial assets

6,543.09

Unsecured

Investments in Preference shares at amortized cost

145.44

Unsecured

Total financial assets at amortised cost

10,132.87




Edelweiss Broking Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

48 Risk Management {continued)

Analysis of financial assets and liabifities by industry risk concentration

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for M

arch 31, 2019

Particulars Financial services Retail Services Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4,441.33 - - 4,441.33
and other bank halances
Stock in trade* - 0.00 - 0.00 |
Investments at amortised cost 0.05 - - 0.03
Financial assets - Amortised cost 3,564.87 1,961.15 118.76 5,644.78
Trade and other receivables 24.38 3,572.09 - 3,596.47
Loans - 11.11 - 1111
Total 8,030.63 5,544.35 118.76 13,693.74
Industry analysis - Risk concentration for March 31, 2018
Particulars Financial services Retail Services Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 1,945.46 - - 1,945.46
and cther bank balances
investments at amortised cost 21.18 - - 21.18
Financial assets - Amortised cost 6,312.24 1,608.84 72.24 7,993.32
Trade and otherreceivables 60.45 4,552.63 - 4,613.08
Loans - 12.00 - 12.00
Total 8,339.33 6,173.47 72.24 14,585.04
Industry analysis - Risk concentration for April 1, 2017
Particulars Financial services Retail Services Total
financial assets
Cash and cash equivalent 1,434.64 - - 1,434.64
and other bank balances

"|investments at amortised cost 201.99 - - 201,89
Financial assets - Amortised cost 6,493.17 - 49.92 6,543.09
Trade and other recejvables 13.24 3,187.85 - 3,201.09
Loans - 8.44 - 8.44
Total 8,143.04 3,196.29 49,92 11,389.25

* Indicates amount less than 0.00 million
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Note

Financial assets available to support future funding

Following table sets out availahility of assets to support funding:

March 31, 2019 Pledge as collateral others {refer | Available as collaterat | others frefer | Total carrying amount
note 1) note 2)

Cash and cash equivalent including other 4,197.42 - 6.38 237.53 4,441.33
bank halance

Trade receivables - - 3,596.47 - 3,556.47
loans - - - 1111 11.11
Investments - - 0.05 - 0.05
Other financial assets - 3,561.47 2,083.31 - 5,644.78
Property, plant and equipment - - 1456.38 - 146.38
Total assets 4,187.42 3,561.47 5,832.59 248.64 13,840.12

March 31, 2018

Pledge as collateral

others (refer

Available as collateral

others frefer

Total carrying amount

note 1j note 2

Cash and cash equivalent including other 1,248.23 - 5.85 681.38 1,945.46
bank balance

Trade receivables - - 4,613.08 - 4,613.08
loans - - - 12.00 12,00
investments - - 21,18 - 21,18
Other financial assets - 6,297.53 1,695.79 - 7,893.32
Property, plant and equipment 188.13 - 94.17 - 282,30
Total assats 1,436.36 6,297.53 6,430.07 703.38 14,867.34

Aprii 1, 2017 Pledge as collateral others frefer |Available as collateral | others frefer }Total carrying amount
note 1) note 2)

Cash and cash equivalent including other 883.73 - 4.00 546.91 1,434.64
bank balance

Trade receivables - - 3,201.09 - 3,201.09
loans - - - 8.44 8.44
Invastments - - 201.95 - 201.99
Other financial assets - 6,490,12 52.97 - 6,543.09
Property, plant and equipment; 198.04 - 83.04 - 281.08
Total assets 1,081.77 6,490.12 3,543.09 555,35 11,670.33

1 Represents assets which are not pledged and Company believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for lagal or ather reason.
2 Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the Company would not consider readily available to secure funding in the

normal course of business.
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Foreign currency transactions

The Company has incurred expenditure in foreign currency ¥ 1.19 million during the year ended
31 March 2019 {Previous year: ¥ 3.83 million).

Additional disclosure on fixed deposits

1. Fixed deposits aggregating to ¥ 3,911.30 million {Previous year: ¥ 960 millon) have been
pledged with exchanges for meeting margin requirement.

2. Fixed deposits aggregating to ¥ 12.87 million (Previous year: ¥ 14.38 million) have been
pledged with exchanges for meeting base capital requirement.

3. Fixed deposits aggregating to T 21.25 million {Previous year: ¥ 23.38 million} have been
pledged with exchanges towards arbitration.

4. Fixed deposits aggregating to ¥ 250 million {Previous year: ¥ 250 million) have been pledged
with bank for availing bank guarantees.

Out of the total amount payable on account ef profession tax as on March 31, 2019, a sum of T
Nil (Previous year: ¥ 0.00*) is outstanding for more than six months where the registration
formalities are in progress.

* Indicates amounts less than 0.00 million

Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries
incurs expenditure like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the
common benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company.
This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees. On
the same lines, certain costs expended by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is
recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure
heads in note 36 and 37 include reimbursements paid and are net of reimbursements received
based on the management’s best estimate. )
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Fee and commission income includes commission earned for selling life / general insurance
policies ¥ 33.35 million (Previous year ¥ 23.77 million).

Brokerage income is disclosed net of related (i} sub-brokerage expenses ¥ 421.88 million
(Previous year: ¥ 477.70 million); and (iii) stock exchange expenses ¥ (7.31) million {Previous
year: ¥ {5.75) million). )

Details of dues to Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Nil {Previous year: Nil} payable to “Suppliers” registered under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid [ is
payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this Act. The
aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inguiries with
suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

First-time adoption — mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2017 (the
transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS,
not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying
items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in
measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to the
certain exception and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below,

Exemptions applied

a. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial
liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1, 2017 (the transition
date).

b. Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively;
however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that
financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at
the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for
information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have
been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.
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First-time adoption — mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions {Continued)

C.

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property, and intangible assets

The Company bas elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and
equipment, investment property, and intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2017
(transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its
deemed cost as of the transition date.

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property, and intangtble assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and
equipment, investment property, and intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2017
{transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its
deemed cost as of the transition date.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease to determine whether an arrangement existing at the transition date
contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.

Share-based payments

The Company has applied the requirements of Ind AS 102 Share-based payment to equity
instruments that are unvested as of the transition to Ind AS {April 1, 2017).
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57 First-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions {continued)

Reconciliation of net profit for the year ended March 31, 2018 as reported under erstwhile Indian GAAP and Ind AS are

summarised as below:

Particulars Year Ended
March 31, 2018
Net Profit after tax as reported under Indian GAAP 6.74
Ind AS adjustments increasing / (decreasing) net profit as reported under
Indian GAAP:
Preference shares investment in Group companies 4.55
Preference shares issued to Group companies {34.80)
ESOP fair value charge (14.50}
Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables 12.09
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {actuarial gains/ losses) 1.93
Tax effect on above adjustments ) (3.61)
Net profit as per Ind AS {28.50)
Other Comprehensive Income after tax as per Ind AS (1.93)
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS (30.53)

Other Comprehensive Income primarily includes impact of re-measurement gains/losses on actuarial valuation of post

employment defined benefits.

Reconciliation of networth as reported under erstwhile Indian GAAP and Ind AS are summarised as below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017

Shareholder's Equity as reported under Indian GAAP 1,448.10 1,548.87

Ind AS adjustments increasing / (decreasing) networth as reported under

indian GAAP:

Preference shares investment in Group companies 0.04 (4.55)

Preference shares issued to Group companies - (345.15)

Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables | 20.75 8.66

Tax adjustment on above items (6.47} (2.86)

Shareholder's Equity as per Ind AS 1,462.41 1,204.97

Statement of cash flows

- The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS does not have a material impact on the statement of cash flows.
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58 Previous year comparatives

Previous year's numbers have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to
current year’s presentation / classification.
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